

# NOTTINGHAMSHIRE AND CITY OF NOTTINGHAM FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY

# MINUTES

of the meeting of the Authority held on <u>23 FEBRUARY 2007</u> at County Hall, West Bridgford, Nottingham from 10.30 am to 1.40 pm.

#### <u>Membership</u>

Councillor D Pulk (Chair) (Vice-Chair) Councillor B Charlesworth Councillor J Cottee Councillor S Fielding **Councillor P Griggs Councillor B Grocock Councillor J Hempsall** Councillor P Henshaw **Councillor H Holt** Councillor J Knight Councillor P Lally Councillor O'Riordan Councillor P Owen Councillor T Pettengell Councillor K Rigby ۸ Councillor T Spencer Councillor T Stephenson (in attendance from minute 69) ۸ Councillor M Wood

Members absent are marked ^

## 60 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Wood (on City Council business), and Councillor Spencer.

# 61 <u>MINUTES</u>

#### RESOLVED

- (1) that, subject to amending of minute 53(3), regarding Shift Change Implementation, to read 'that the November and December minutes of the Task and Finish Group be circulated to all Authority Members prior to inclusion on the Fire and Rescue Authority Agenda', the minutes of the last meeting held on 8 December 2006, copies of which had been circulated, be confirmed and signed by the Chair;
- (2) that, to ensure Members were kept informed of progress, minutes of the Shift Change Implementation Task and Finish Group, since the last meeting of the Authority, be circulated to all Members.

## 62 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were made at this point. However, Councillors Charlesworth and Pulk declared personal interests in agenda item 12 (minute 71) which are recorded in minute 71.

## 63 CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chair informed the Authority that, for the assessment areas regarding service delivery and performance indicators, the Comprehensive Performance Assessment had awarded the Service the highest rating of 4. Ratings for two other areas of work were pending.

# RESOLVED that the Chief Fire Officer write to all staff, congratulating and formally thanking them on behalf of the Authority for their involvement in achieving such an excellent Comprehensive Performance Assessment rating.

The Chair formally welcomed Mr Peter Short as Interim Head of the Human Resources Department.

The Chair also informed Members that during his visits to district and borough councils, the Integrated Risk Management Plan, regarding Community Safety, had been enthusiastically received. He reported that he was pleased to have also attended a community engagement event in Gedling organised by firefighter Shorrocks.

Councillor Charlesworth was presented with a certificate of thanks by the Chair in anticipation of his retirement from local government at the end of the municipal year and was thanked for the many years of dedicated work with the Fire and Rescue Authority. He responded by wishing the Authority continued success.

## 64 <u>COMMUNITY SAFETY PLAN 2007-10</u>

Further to minute 52 dated 8 December 2006, consideration was given to a report of the Chief Fire Officer, copies of the report had been circulated, while copies of the plan were circulated at the meeting.

# RESOLVED

- (1) that the Community Safety Plan 2007-10 be approved as the Authority's business framework for the next three years;
- (2) that an annual update to ensure the Community Safety Plan remained current, and an annual report on progress each year be submitted;
- (3) that in future reports the Chief Fire Officer further clarify and detail the Equality Impact Assessment.

# 65 COMMUNITY RISK REDUCTION STRATEGY 2007-10

Prior to consideration of this item, workforce representatives asked questions which were answered verbally by the Chair.

Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Fire Officer, copies of which had been circulated.

**RESOLVED** that the Community Risk Reduction Strategy 2007-10, be adopted.

# 66 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING

Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Fire Officer, copies of which had been circulated.

RESOLVED that the recommendations of the Finance and Resources Committee relating to the use of balances and under spends, as follows, be approved:-

- (a) the original transfer from balances to support Revenue should be left in the balances;
- (b) an additional contribution to balances should be made in order to ensure that further contributions did not need to be made in 2007/08 and 2008/09 thus relieving the burden on Council Tax;
- (c) an earmarked reserve of £280,000 be created and ringfenced to provide for Retained Staff to backdate their membership of the pension scheme;
- (d) an earmarked reserve, initially of £75,000, be created in respect of the Authority's commitment to making continuing professional development payments to whole-time staff;
- (e) a contribution of £300,000 be made to support the 2006/07 capital programme, thus relieving the 2007/08 budget from additional charges;
- (f) a Community Safety earmarked reserve of £200,000 be created to enable further community safety initiatives and guard against grant reductions.

# 67 PRUDENTIAL CODE FOR CAPITAL FINANCE

Consideration was given to a joint report of the Chief Fire Officer and Treasurer, copies of which had been circulated.

#### RESOLVED

- (1) that the report be noted;
- (2) the following prudential limits for 2007/08 be approved:-

Authorised Limit		£19,638,000
Operational Boundary		£17,853,000
Upper limit for variable rate interest exposures		30%
Upper limit for fixed rate interest exposures		100%
Loan Maturity Under 12 months 12 months to 5 years 5 years to 10 years Over 10 years	Greater than 25%	less than 20% less than 20% less than 75% less than 100%

## 68 WORKING BALANCES

Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Fire Officer, copies of which had been circulated, detailing the levels of reserves and balances to meet the requirements of the Authority during the 2007/08 financial year and beyond.

## RESOLVED that the levels of balances recommended by the Finance and Resources Committee as set out in the report, be approved.

#### 69 <u>REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGETS 2007/08 TO 2009/10 PRECEPT AND</u> COUNCIL TAX 2007/08

Prior to the meeting an erratum was circulated.

Consideration was given to a report of the Chair, copies of which had been circulated.

The Chair proposed and Councillor Charlesworth seconded an amendment to the recommendations of the report as follows:-

## **Revised Recommendations**

That Members approve a Net Revenue Budget for the Fire Authority of £41,673,051.

That Members approve a Fire Authority Precept of £20,599,622 which will be applied to the whole of the City and District Council areas as General Expenses. This will be billed to each District Council as follows:-

	£
Ashfield	2,174,695.35
Bassetlaw	2,249,658.32
Broxtowe	2,211,998.64
Gedling	2,388,127.72
Mansfield	1,943,608.08
Newark and Sherwood	2,383,781.81
Nottingham City	4,706,084.35
Rushcliffe	2,541,667.73
	20,599,622.00

That members approve the Council Tax for the Fire Authority at various bands being set as follows:

	£
Band A	42.35
Band B	49.41
Band C	56.47
Band D	63.53
Band E	77.65
Band F	91.77
Band G	105.88
Band H	127.06

The precept for 2007/8 will be collected from City and District Councils in accordance with their agreed tax bases with payments in equal instalments on the following dates:-

2007	2008
23 <sup>rd</sup> April 25 <sup>th</sup> May 4th July 7 <sup>th</sup> August 14 <sup>th</sup> September 17 <sup>th</sup> October 22 <sup>rd</sup> November	4 <sup>th</sup> January 8 <sup>th</sup> February 13 <sup>th</sup> March

That the Members approve the Capital Programme for 2007/8 to 2009/2010 as set out in the original report.

That Members approve the Revenue Budgets for 2008/2009 and 2009/2010 as set out in Appendix A to this report.

When put to the vote, this motion was carried.

RESOLVED (Unanimously) that the following be approved:-

- (1) a Net Revenue Budget for the Fire Authority of £41,673,051;
- (2) a Fire Authority Precept of £20,599,622 to be applied to the whole of the City and District Council areas as General Expenses and be billed to each District Council as follows:-

	£
Ashfield	2,174,695.35
Bassetlaw	2,249,658.32
Broxtowe	2,211,998.64
Gedling	2,388,127.72
Mansfield	1,943,608.08
Newark and Sherwood	2,383,781.81
Nottingham City	4,706,084.35
Rushcliffe	2,541,667.73
	<u>20,599,622.00</u>

(3) Council Tax for the Fire Authority, as follows:-

	£
Band A	42.35
Band B	49.41
Band C	56.47
Band D	63.53
Band E	77.65
Band F	91.77
Band G	105.88
Band H	127.06

(4) the precept for 2007/8 be collected from City and District Councils in accordance with their agreed tax bases with payments in equal instalments on the following dates:-

<u>2007</u>	<u>2008</u>
23 April 25 May 4 July	4 January 8 February 13 March
7 August 14 September 17 October 22 November	

- (5) the Capital Programme for 2007/08 to 2009/10, as set out in the original report;
- (6) the Revenue Budgets for 2008/09 and 2009/10 as set out in Appendix A to the report.

# 70 AMENDMENT TO GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS

Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Fire Officer, copies of which had been circulated.

#### RESOLVED

#### (1) that the revisions to governance be approved as follows:-

#### FIRE & RESCUE AUTHORITY

**Role** - The role of the Fire & Rescue Authority is specifically detailed in Part 2, Sections 6,7,8 and 9 of the Fire & Rescue Services Act 2004. In summary these can be described as,

- 1. Making provision for the purpose of promoting Fire Safety within its area.
- 2. Making provision for the purpose of
  - (a) extinguishing fires, and
  - (b) protecting life and property in the event of fires

within its area.

- 3. Making provision for the purpose of,
  - (a) rescuing people from road traffic accidents, and
  - (b) protecting people from serious harm, to the extent that it is reasonable to do so, in the event of road traffic accidents, within its area.
- 4. Making provision for the purpose of any emergency function, confirmed by the Secretary of State, within its area.

Regular cycle of meetings - Four times per annum.

#### 18 Elected Members comprising of:-

12 Members from the County - Nottinghamshire County Council 6 Members from the City - Nottingham City Council

**Quorum** - At least one-third of the total membership (6), to include a representative from each of the constituent Councils.

## FIRE & RESCUE AUTHORITY TERMS OF REFERENCE

- 1. To lead and support the delivery of effective and risk managed services for Community Safety and wellbeing.
- 2. To agree strategy and resources for future delivery of services for Community Safety and wellbeing.

- 3. To assess the effectiveness through regular committee reports of current services for Community Safety and wellbeing.
- 4. To approve the annual budget as recommended by the Finance and Resources Committee.
- 5. Any matters which by law must be decided by the Fire & Rescue Authority.
- 6. To have due regard to Equal Opportunities and, in particular, the Authority's responsibilities under the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000.
- 7. To approve changes to the constitution of the Fire & Rescue Authority and its committees.
- 8. To approve the Financial Regulations.

## POLICY & STRATEGY COMMITTEE

**Role** - Based on the Government publication 'Local Leadership, Local Choice' it is proposed that within new Governance arrangements the Policy & Strategy Committee will lead the strategic planning process and the preparation of plans and strategies. It will consult on and draw up the annual budget for submission to the full Fire & Rescue Authority and take in-year decisions on resources and priorities. In addition, it will be the focus for forming partnerships with other agencies.

**Responsibilities** - According to Government guidelines, the Policy & Strategy Committee should be responsible for all matters of Fire & Rescue Authority Business other than those required by legislation to be dealt with by the full Fire & Rescue Authority or those matters required by legislation not to be the responsibility of the Policy & Strategy Committee.

Given the fact that the Fire & Rescue Authority is, for all relevant purposes a single Service Authority, the desire within the Fire & Rescue Authority for inclusivity and the size of the Fire & Rescue Authority itself, the extent of delegation should be carefully considered to ensure individual ownership of corporate outcomes by Members.

The Policy & Strategy Committee will be called upon and have delegated responsibility to deal with any urgent matter that cannot await consideration by the full Fire & Rescue Authority.

**Regular cycle of meetings** - Four times per annum.

## 6 Members comprising:-

Chair of Fire & Rescue Authority Chair of Human Resources Committee Chair of Finance & Resources Committee Chair of Community Safety Committee Conservative Spokesperson Liberal Democrat Spokesperson

## Advisors

CFO DCFO Plus Strategic Management Committee as appropriate. Clerk to the Fire & Rescue Authority (amendment by Fire & Rescue Authority at its meeting of 13 September 2006)

#### Quorum - 3 Members

# POLICY AND STRATEGY COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE

- 1. To consider the overall strategic aims and objectives of the Fire & Rescue Authority and make recommendations to the full Fire & Rescue Authority.
- 2. To consider and determine all financial matters appertaining to the Fire & Rescue Authority with the exception of:-
  - (i) Approval of the annual budget and related issues.
  - (ii) Approval of Financial Regulations.
  - (iii) Any matter which by law must be decided by the full Fire & Rescue Authority.
- 3. To lead on all matters relating to the Authority's Consultation and Communication Strategies and to act as the main conduit for the expression of public opinion on Fire service issues.
- 4. To review the results of consultation undertaken to inform the Authority's Plan To work with the Chief Fire Officer in the production of the Services' business plan, including consultation, timetable for delivery, Member engagement and annual reports (amendment by Fire & Rescue Authority at its meeting of 23 February 2007).
- 5. To oversee all matters pertaining to the corporate governance of the Authority.
- 6. To receive reports from all other committees.
- 7. To ensure that issues raised in the Authority's consultation processes are fully taken into account of in planning and decision making.
- 8. Working with the Chief Fire Officer to prepare and recommend to the Fire & Rescue Authority an annual Plan and three year strategic plan. (\*see 4 amendment by Fire & Rescue Authority at its meeting of 23 February 2007).
- 9. To consider reports from external agencies such as External Auditors/Audit Commission/HMFSI/HSE which have strategic implications for the Fire & Rescue Authority.
- 10. To make recommendations to the Fire & Rescue Authority as appropriate.
- 11. To consider draft policies of the Service where the proposed policies have strategic implications for the Organisation.

- 12. To consider any matters referred by the Fire & Rescue Authority either for decision or report to the Authority.
- 13. To oversee the development and implementation of equalities and fairness policies and, in particular, the Authority's responsibilities under the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000.
- 14. To consider proposals of government departments and other national or regional bodies which have national or regional implications or which would affect the Authority in its relationships with other authorities.
- 15. To act upon Government Policy with regard to Fire and Rescue Services (Fire & Rescue Services Act, Fire & Rescue Service National Framework).
- 16. To consider implications arising from Regional Management Board (RMB) and advise on regional implications.
- 17. To act as an emergency committee.
- 18. Approve the process for the preparation of the local and strategic plans, in conjunction with the Chief Fire Officer, to include approving the timetable for plan delivery, consultation, member engagement, progress against the timetable and approving the contents of the draft plan. (\*see 4 amendment by Fire & Rescue Authority at its meeting of 23 February 2007).
- 19. To be responsible for the Health and Safety function including recommending Fire & Rescue Authority priorities for Health and Safety in the overall strategy, monitoring the Service's discharge of its legal duties in respect of Health and Safety, ensuring that the Service has appropriate Health and Safety Management Systems in place, exceptionally requesting carrying out of audits by the Service on Health and Safety issues.
- 20. To be responsible for Risk Management including the implementation of the Action Plan attached to the Risk Management Policy, considering risks to which the Authority may be exposed and developing the strategy to reduce or eliminate these.
- 21. To establish, as required, task and finish groups (added by Fire & Rescue Authority at its meeting on 28 April 2006).
- 22. To be the lead Committee on Value for Money (added by Fire & Rescue Authority at its meeting on 9 June 2006).
- 23. To act as the lead on Equalities issues and then respond to referrals from the Ad-hoc Equalities group (added by Fire & Rescue Authority at its meeting on 9 June 2006).

## STANDARDS COMMITTEE

**Role** - To examine any concerns about standards of conduct by Members or Officers of the Fire & Rescue Authority, and to make recommendations, give approval and support to any changes in the present arrangements to ensure the highest standards of propriety within Nottinghamshire and City of Nottingham Fire & Rescue Authority.

# **Responsibilities -**

- 1. To promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Members and employees.
- 2. To oversee ethical issues and provide advice and guidance relating to conduct.
- 3. To assist in determining any complaints of a breach of the Fire & Rescue Authority's procedures.
- 4. To consider the adoption or amendment of any procedure to assist Officers and members in maintaining their integrity with regard to Fire & Rescue Authority matters.

Meets as and when required, minimum of one per annum.

#### 4 Members comprising:-

- 1 x Labour
- 1 x Conservative
- 1 x Liberal Democrat
- 1 x An Independent Member (Non Authority)

#### Advisors

Assistant Chief Fire Officer (Head of Information Services) Monitoring Officer

**Quorum** - Three of which one must be the Independent (non-Authority) Member except where the Independent Member is prevented or restricted from participating in any business of the Authority by virtue of its Code of Conduct.

#### STANDARDS COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE

The proceedings of the Standards Committee shall be as determined by the Local Government Act 2000 and regulations and guidance made there-under and otherwise as determined by the Committee itself.

The Standards Committee shall have power to report, with recommendations, to the Authority at such times and in such manner as it thinks fit.

The terms of reference of the Standards Committee shall be to:-

- 1. Promote and maintain high standards of conduct by members of the Fire & Rescue Authority.
- 2. Advise the Authority on the adoption or revision of the Members Code of Conduct.
- 3. Advise, train or arrange to train members on matters relating to the Members Code of Conduct.
- 4. Grant dispensations to members from requirements relating to interests set out in the Members Code of Conduct.

- 5. To take action prescribed or permitted by law in respect of findings of failure to comply with the Codes of Conduct on the part of elected and co-opted members of the Authority.
- 6. Dealing (including by way of hearing representations) with any reports from a case tribunal or interim case tribunal, and any report from the monitoring officer on any matter which is referred by an ethical standards officer to the monitoring officer.
- 7. Advise the Authority on all matters relating to the applicability, award and level or any other matter relating to allowances payable to members in accordance with the Local Authority's (Members Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003.
- 8. To have due regard to Equal Opportunities and, in particular, the Authority's responsibilities under the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000.
- 9. Ratify Governance issues relating to Members duties under the Members Handbook.

#### HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE

**Role** - Based on the significant requirements of the identified Human Resources agenda, this sub-committee has a major role to play in the development and implementation of the Human Resources Strategy and its component policies, the development of policies and actions associated with the Race Equality Scheme and Integrated Personal Development Scheme (IPDS).

**Responsibilities** - The Human Resources <del>Sub</del>-Committee has responsibility for the Human resources Strategy and the monitoring of performance related to policies enacted in support of it. This Sub-Committee will also have responsibility for the Equalities Ad-hoc Group. (amendment by Fire & Rescue Authority at its meeting of 9 June 2006).

**Regular cycle of meetings** - Four times per annum.

**Members comprising** - 5 Elected Members to include the Vice Chair of Fire & Rescue Authority.

Advisor - Head of HR

Quorum - 3

## HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE

(Terms of Reference amendments proposed at Fire & Rescue Authority meeting, 23/02/07).

To take decisions in relation to the following matters consider, monitor and make recommendations to the Fire & Rescue Authority in relation to the following areas.

To consider and make decisions on:-

1. HR issues including the recruitment and retention of staff, equal opportunity employment issues, employment tribunals, training and development, and occupational health.

- 2. Any issues regarding the pay and terms/conditions of staff below the grade of Assistant Chief Officer or equivalent (amended by Fire & Rescue Authority at its meeting on 23 February 2007).
- 3. Pensions issues.
- 4. Matters relating to liaison with employee representative bodies, trade unions and staff associations with regard to consultation and negotiation.
- 5. To have due regard to Equal Opportunities and, in particular, the Authority's responsibilities under the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000.
- 6. Occupational Health Provision.
- 7. Make decisions with regard to absence monitoring.
- 8. To act upon outcomes referred to it from Appointments Committee, Personnel Committee and Ad-Hoc Equalities (removed by Fire & Rescue Authority at its meeting on 9 June 2006).
- 9. To initiate, facilitate and implement revised policies with regard to personnel development.
- 10. To assess, prepare and review the impact of more flexible working patterns as part of the whole work life balance approach.
- 11. To consider, and if appropriate determine any issues delegated by the Fire & Rescue Authority.
- 12. To review performance indicators, as directed by the Performance Monitoring Committee, relating to Human Resources issues.
- 13. To report any decisions made in relation to items 1 -12 above, to the Fire & Rescue Authority (added 23/02/07).

To consider and make recommendations to the Fire & Rescue Authority on:-

- 1. Matters relating to staffing including structure and terms and conditions of staff including the Clerk/Treasurer.
- 2. To set and review a Learning and Development Strategy that ensures all personnel are prepared to meet their responsibilities as employees.
- 3. To set the Occupational Health direction/strategy and review as appropriate.
- 4. To set Health, Safety and Welfare policy and strategy and to deal with Health and Safety welfare issues, as they arise.
- 5. Ensure the Service meets its requirements under the Disability Discrimination Act and other specific legal requirements.

- 6. To ensure that relevant training and support for Members and their respective roles is assessed through a regular training needs analysis.
- 7. To review and agree specific actions arising from the Human Resources workstream associated with the Regional Management Board and its delegated responsibilities.
- 8. To provide leadership and direction with regard to the implementation of the Human Resources Strategy.
- 9. To consider and make recommendations to Policy & Strategy Committee any issues relating to Principal Officer posts, their terms and conditions of service, contracts and salaries. (Assistant Chief Officer/ equivalent or above). (Added by Fire & Rescue Authority at its meeting on 23 February 2007).

## **EQUALITIES AD-HOC GROUP**

**Role** - To ensure that the Fire & Rescue Authority meets its obligation with regard to its legal duties in respect of equality of opportunity.

## **Responsibilities -**

- 1. To have due regard, in exercising the Authority's responsibilities to equal opportunities in regard to the general duty of the Race relations (Amendment) Act 2000 and the requirements of any other equalities legislation.
- 2. To ensure that equality of opportunity is inherent within Nottinghamshire and City of Nottingham Fire & Rescue Authority along with an culture of openness and honesty.

**Regular cycle of meetings** - Four times per annum.

Members comprising - 4 Members

#### Advisors

CFO DCFO Head of Human Resources Service Equalities Officer

Attendees - Representative Bodies

## AD HOC EQUALITIES GROUP TERMS OF REFERENCE

To consider, monitor and make recommendations in relation to the following areas:-

- 1. Issues relating to equal opportunities and diversity within the Fire & Rescue Authority and the Service.
- 2. The Authority's Action Plan attached to its Race Equality Scheme and to ensure that these are implemented in a timely manner.

- 3. To ensure that any and all consultations and communications carried out by the Fire & Rescue Authority engage with, and reflects the views of, Nottinghamshire's diverse communities.
- 4. To ensure that Equality Impact Assessments are carried out by the Fire & Rescue Authority, and any outcomes are actioned.
- 5. The development of performance indicators and target setting for the Service in relation to diversity issues.
- 6. To have due regard to Equal Opportunities and, in particular, the Authority's responsibilities under the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000.
- 7. To ensure that the Fire & Rescue Authority meet its requirements under the Disability Discrimination Act (DDA).
- 8. To report, as required, to the Policy & Strategy Committee on the Services' progress with regard to Equalities issues (added by Fire & Rescue Authority at its meeting on 9 June 2006).

#### **COMMUNITY SAFETY COMMITTEE**

**Role** - The Community Safety Committee will focus on issues relating to strategic aspects of service delivery, including the exploration of new services relating to the accomplishment of the Fire & Rescue Authority's vision.

**Responsibilities** - The Community Safety Committee is responsible for consideration of the service delivery development requirements of the Authority. It is directly responsible for the service delivery options for the production of the Community Safety Plan. This Committee will be responsible for the Authority's engagement with stakeholders in the interests of improving service delivery and effectiveness, and sharing best practices. It will need to develop a clear strategy on how to involve the public and other stakeholders in decisions and the development and review of strategy and policy.

**Regular cycle of meetings** - Four times per annum.

Members comprising - 5 Members

Advisor - Assistant Chief Fire Officer (Safety Services)

**Quorum** - 3

## COMMUNITY SAFETY COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE

(Terms of Reference amendments proposed at Fire & Rescue Authority meeting, 23/02/07).

To take decisions in relation to the following consider, monitor and make recommendations in relation to the following areas.

To consider and make decisions on:-

- 1. All matters relating to the development, promotion and delivery of a co-ordinated Community Safety Strategy.
- 2. To consider areas for partnership in conjunction with partner organisations.
- 3. To monitor the participation of partner organisation in relation to Service and Authority planning and target setting processes.
- 4. To receive and review Community Safety Data.
- 5. Convene any Working Parties or Task groups as may be appropriate to assist in fulfilling the duties of the Committee.
- 6. To have due regard to Equal Opportunities and, in particular, the Authority's responsibilities under the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000.
- 7. Review the operational capability and response of the Service.
- 8. Consider, and if appropriate, determine any other matters, which may be referred to the Committee by the Authority.
- 9. To report any decisions made in relation to items 1 8 above, to Fire & Rescue Authority (added 23/02/07).

To consider and make recommendations to the Fire & Rescue Authority on:-

- 1. Any future strategy with regard to resource location and deployment.
- 2. The strategy for the delivery of Education, Prevention and Response.
- 3. Consider all matters related to the Civil Contingencies function of the Authority.
- 4. To recommend to the Policy and Strategy Committee long term objectives for the reduction of preventable deaths and injuries.
- 5. To work to ensure that Nottinghamshire Fire and Rescue Service meets its expectations on the reduction of fire deaths and injuries as identified in the Fire and Rescue Services National Framework.

#### PERFORMANCE MONITORING COMMITTEE

**Role** - The role of the Performance Monitoring Committee is to carry out monitoring of performance, reviewing decisions, and undertaking cross-section reviews of individual areas of the Service.

**Responsibilities** - The responsibility of the Performance Monitoring Committee is to deal with all matters relating to the improvement of performance within the Nottinghamshire and City of Nottingham Fire & Rescue Authority. Through effective audit processes and reviews, the Performance Monitoring Committee is to action improvements in required areas as necessary.

In particular:-

- (a) Fire & Rescue Authority decisions and actions,
- (b) Annual Reports,
- (c) Auditors reports,
- (d) Financial management,
- (e) Areas as designated by the Fire & Rescue Authority.

Regular cycle of meetings - Four times per annum.

#### Members comprising - 5 Members

Advisor - Assistant Chief Fire Officer (Information Services)

Quorum - 3

## PERFORMANCE MONITORING COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE

To consider, monitor and make recommendations in relation to the following:-

- 1. The production of the Fire & Rescue Authority's Annual Report.
- 2. Monitoring of the Service's performance, the use of resources by the Service and its financial and efficiency planning.
- 3. To review the treasury management and audit functions.
- 4. To monitor Service performance against the targets set out in the planning process and in action plans and to require the Service to take actions to secure the required levels of performance.
- 5. To require and review reports on performance issues highlighted by committees and working groups and in particular issues referred to the Committee as a consequence of Best Value Reviews.
- 6. To consider reports from the internal and external auditors relating to performance issues.
- 7. To consider the reports and findings of external or internal studies or reviews relating to performance issues.
- 8. To monitor the Service's discharge of its responsibilities under the Health and Safety legislation.
- 9. To oversee the implementation of the Risk Management Policy and the associated action plans.
- 10. To consider any matters referred by the Fire & Rescue Authority either for decision or report to the Fire & Rescue Authority.
- 11. Possible corporate implications of the standards issues raised by the Standards Committee.

- 12. To have due regard to Equal Opportunities and, in particular, the Authority's responsibilities under the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000.
- 13. To act on and investigate external "best practice" and report back to relevant committees on such processes and to report to Fire & Rescue Authority following investigation.
- 14. To action and seek reports on any improvement plans implemented, (eg CPA, Audit reports).
- 15. To receive progress reports on any issues referred to it and report that progress to Fire & Rescue Authority (added 23/02/07).

## BEST VALUE REVIEW BOARD

**Role** - To carry out as necessary Best Value Reviews of the activities carried out by Nottinghamshire and City of Nottingham Fire & Rescue Authority.

**Responsibilities** - To ensure that Nottinghamshire and City of Nottingham Fire & Rescue Authority's activities are carried out in a manner that is as efficient and effective as possible always ensuring Best Value to the public and stakeholders alike.

Meetings as required on the instruction of the Performance Monitoring Committee to carry out Best Value Reviews on Service activities.

Members comprising - 6 Members including:-

Chair and Vice Chair of Fire & Rescue Authority Members of Strategic Management Team Representative Bodies

## BEST VALUE REVIEW BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE

Members elected to the Best Value review Board will, as required, be involved in Best value reviews in relation to the provision of services within Nottinghamshire Fire & Rescue Service.

Duties will include assisting in the following:-

- 1. Planning of Best Value Reviews.
- 2. Approval of proposals and giving authorisation for Best Value Reviews.
- 3. Examining the quality and relevance of any review taking place.
- 4. Ensuring, following completion of any agreed reviews, the outcomes are referred to the appropriate committees of the Fire & Rescue Authority.

# FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

**Role** - The Finance & Resources Committee will focus on issues relating to strategic aspects of financial and resource management including the Capital programme, property strategy and efficiency-based requirements relating to the accomplishment of the Fire & Rescue Authority's vision and Government's expectations.

**Responsibilities** - The Finance & Resources Committee will be responsible for the finance and property strategies, as well as overseeing reviews and audits relating to value for money and efficiency.

Regular cycle of meetings - Four times per annum.

Members comprising - 5 Members

#### Advisors

Head of Finance and Resources Treasurer to the Fire & Rescue Authority (amendment proposed by Fire & Rescue Authority at its meeting of 23 February 2007)

#### Quorum - 3

## FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE

(Terms of Reference amendments proposed at Fire & Rescue Authority meeting, 23/02/07).

To take decisions in relation to the following consider, monitor and make recommendations to the Policy and Strategy Committee in relation to the following areas.

To consider and make decisions on:-

- 1. The audit function including the appointment of internal/external auditors, the contents of the external auditor's management letter, the arrangements for internal audit and the annual accounts.
- 2. To ensure the fees and charges for services provided by the Authority are kept under review.
- 3. Oversee the development and implementation of a Code of Governance in accordance with CIPFA Guidance.
- 4. Property and other related issues.
- 5. To have due regard to Equal Opportunities and, in particular, the Authority's responsibilities under the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000.
- 6. To agree the implementation of and review the outcomes of Cardiff Checks.
- 7. Consider reports of the District Auditor and the Audit Commission relating to the efficiency and effectiveness of the Authority.

- 8. Establish and direct procedures for the implementation, maintaining and amendment of the revenue budget and capital programme.
- 9. Exercise financial control over expenditure within the approved budgets and capital programme of the Authority.
- 10. Consider recommendations to incur expenditure on the capital account.
- 11. Consider proposals involving the increasing or reduction of income including the writing off of monies owed to the Authority.
- 12. Consider, and if appropriate determine any other matters which may be referred to the Committee by the Fire & Rescue Authority.
- 13. Act as Audit Committee on behalf of the Authority by ensuring that an effective internal control environment is maintained (including the safeguarding of assets, maintenance of proper accountancy records and the reliability of financial information).
- 14. Consider policies for the raising and investment of funds.
- 15. Consider proposals for awards of contracts exceeding £150,000.
- 16. Consider proposals to exercise virement between lines within the approved budget.
- 17. To be responsible for the review and monitoring of the Statement of Internal Control.
- 18. To report any decisions made in relation to items 1 17 above, to Fire & Rescue Authority (added 23/02/07).

To consider and make recommendations to the Fire & Rescue Authority on:-

- 1. To advise the Authority generally as to its financial and economic policies.
- 2. To consider and recommend to the Fire & Rescue Authority a Medium Term Financial Plan.
- 3. To consider and recommend to the Fire & Rescue Authority annual revenue/capital budgets.

## APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE

Role - The recruitment and selection of Principal Officers of the Service.

**Responsibilities** - To make appointments to principal management posts as set out within the terms of reference.

## Meets as and when required

Members will comprise the Chair and Vice Chair of the Fire & Rescue Authority and four other Authority Members.

## Advisors

CFO

Head of Human Resources (when not appointing the post of Head of Human Resources) Appropriate external support

(added by Fire & Rescue Authority at its meeting of 23 February 2007)

## Quorum - 3

#### APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE

To monitor and make recommendations to the Fire & Rescue Authority in relation to the following area:

1. To act as the Appointing Body for the post of Chief Fire Officer, Deputy Chief Fire Officer, Assistant Chief Fire Officers, Head of Human Resources and the Head of Finance & Resources.

#### PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

**Role** - To take decisions with regard to the following specific personnel issues. <del>consider</del> and make recommendations with regard to specific personnel issues as referred by the Fire & Rescue Authority, Policy & Strategy Committee, and the Human Resources Committee. (amendment by Fire & Rescue Authority at its meeting of 23 February 2007).

**Responsibility** - To ensure that the Fire & Rescue Authority meets its requirements and responsibilities with regard to its employees in respect of:-

- (a) Contractual
- (b) Legal
- (c) Financial and
- (d) Pension

Issues.

Meets as required - at the rising of Fire & Rescue Authority.

**Members comprising** - 6 Members to include a Committee Member from the HR Committee

#### Advisors

Clerk to the Fire & Rescue Authority Head of Human Resources

#### Quorum - 3

## PERSONNEL COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE

1. To hear and decide on grading appeals and appeals relating to equal pay. Decisions of the Personnel Committee are to be without prejudice to any rights of the individual to pursue matters elsewhere.

- 2. To hear appeals brought to Members level through formal processes, e.g. grievance and harassment complaints procedures and recruitment appeals. Decisions of the Personnel Committee are to be without prejudice to any rights of any party to pursue matters elsewhere.
- 3. To have due regard to Equal Opportunities and, in particular, the Authority's responsibilities under the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000.
- 4. To reconsider and determine decisions under section 50 of the Pensions Act 1995 and the Occupational Pensions Scheme (Internal Disputes Resolution Procedures) Regulations 1996 and matters relating to pensions other than these exempt by the 1996 regulations.
- 5. To consider and determine all requests for consideration of cases under the Firefighters Pension Scheme.
- 6. Consider, and if appropriate, determine any other matters which may be referred to the Committee.
- 7. Consider applications for sports leave as detailed in the Personnel Handbook.

The Personnel Committee will not be concerned with general personnel policy related items, which will continue to be referred to the full Fire & Rescue Authority via the Human Resources Committee and the Policy and Strategy Committee.

- (2) that governance arrangements continue to be monitored and reviewed to ensure the Service maintained high standards;
- (3) that Councillors who were not appointed to, but attended a Committee meeting, be listed in the minutes under 'also in attendance'.

#### 71 AMENDMENTS TO MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES

Prior to consideration of this item, Councillors Charlesworth and Pulk, declared personal interests as beneficiaries of the proposals, which did not preclude them from speaking and voting.

Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Fire Officer, copies of which had been circulated.

RESOLVED that, with effect from 1 April 2007, the Special Responsibility Allowances paid to the Chair and Vice Chair be increased by £800 each to reflect the additional responsibilities arising from their appointment as Directors of the Regional Control Centre Company.

## 72 FIRE & RESCUE 2007 CONFERENCE

Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Fire Officer, copies of which had been circulated.

# RESOLVED

- (1) that the Fire and Rescue Authority be represented at the United Kingdom National Extrication Conference and Challenge Event in, to be held in Birmingham on 22-24 May 2007, on the basis of two Members from the majority group and one from the lead opposition group;
- (2) that the cost of approximately £750 per delegate be met from the budget for Members conference expenses.

## 73 <u>UNITED KINGDOM NATIONAL EXTRICATION CONFERENCE AND</u> <u>CHALLENGE EVENT - 12-14 JULY 2007</u>

Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Fire Officer, copies of which had been circulated.

## RESOLVED

- (1) that the Fire and Rescue Authority be represented at the United Kingdom National Extrication Conference and Challenge Event on, to be held in Cardiff Indoor Arena on 12-14 July 2007, on the basis of two Members from the majority group and one from the lead opposition group;
- (2) that the cost of approximately £450 per delegate be met from the budget for Members conference expenses.

## 74 FIRE GATEWAY

Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Fire Officer, copies of which had been circulated, informing Members of the Fire Gateway website (www.fire.gov.uk) which enabled Home Safety Checks to be accessed on-line.

**RESOLVED** that the report be noted.

## 75 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED that, pursuant to section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the remaining items as they contained information relating to:-

- individuals and were likely to reveal the identity of those individuals and,
- consultations in regard to the financial and business affairs of particular individuals and the Authority,

and having regard to all the circumstances, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in disclosing the information, as defined in paragraphs 1, 2, 3 and 4 of Schedule 12A to the Act.

# 76 CHANGE TO SALARY GRADE

Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Fire Officer, copies of which had been circulated, regarding the outcome of a recent job evaluation.

## RESOLVED

- (1) that the recommendations of the Human Resources Committee be approved as detailed in the report;
- (2) that, in accordance with the grading process, the scale point be set by the Head of Service.

## 77 INTEGRATED COMMON SERVICES REVIEW

Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Fire Officer, copies of which had been circulated.

RESOLVED that the recommendations, as detailed in the report, be supported and endorsed.

#### 78 HUMAN RESOURCES REVIEW

Consideration was given to a joint report of the Clerk and Treasurer, copies of which had been circulated.

RESOLVED (unanimously) that the report be accepted and recommendations as identified following member's discussion, be approved.

## 79 INTERACTIVE COMMUNICATION AND WORKING

Consideration was given to a report of the Clerk, copies of which were placed around the table.

RESOLVED (unanimously) that the recommendations, as identified in the report, be approved.